O
%

Leicester
City Council

MEETING OF THE HERITAGE, CULTURE, LEISURE AND SPORT
SCRUTINY COMMISSION

DATE: TUESDAY, 14 JUNE 2016

TIME: 5:30 pm

PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles
Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

Members of the Committee

Councillor Bajaj (Chair)
Councillor Unsworth (Vice-Chair)

Councillors Dr Barton, Dawood, Govind, Shelton and Singh Johal
(1 unallocated non-grouped place)

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider
the items of business listed overleaf.

For Monitoring Officer

Officer contacts:
Alex Sargeson (Scrutiny Policy Officer)
Elaine Baker (Democratic Support Officer),
Tel: 0116 454 6355, e-mail: elaine.baker@leicester.gov.uk
Leicester City Council, City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ




Information for members of the public
Attending meetings and access to information

You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, City Mayor &
Executive Public Briefing and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes. On
occasion however, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.

Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s website
at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, from the Council’'s Customer Service Centre or by contacting us
using the details below.

Making meetings accessible to all

Wheelchair access — Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users.
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on
the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically.

Braille/audio tape/transilation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability).

Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms. Please speak to the
Democratic Support Officer using the details below.

Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including
social media. In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s policy, persons and press
attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where
the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting.
Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support.

If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant
Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public
gallery etc..

The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’'s policy is to encourage public interest and
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked:

to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption;

to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided;

where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting;

where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they
may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed.

AN NN

Further information

If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact:
Elaine Baker, Democratic Support Officer on 0116 454 6355.

Alternatively, email elaine.baker@leicester.gov.uk, or call in at City Hall.

For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151.


http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/

PUBLIC SESSION

AGENDA

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION

If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the are outside the Ramada Encore Hotel
on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will
then be given.

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to
be discussed.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING Appendix A

The Minutes of the meeting of the Heritage, Culture, Leisure and Sport Scrutiny
Commission held on 31 March 2016 are attached and Members are asked to
confirm them as a correct record.

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE Appendix B

Members are asked to note the Terms of Reference for the Heritage, Culture,
Leisure and Sport Scrutiny Commission, (attached).

5. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMISSION 2016/17
Members are asked to note the membership of the Commission for 2016/17:-

Councillor Bajaj (Chair)
Councillor Unsworth (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Dr Barton

Councillor Dawood

Councillor Govind

Councillor Shelton

Councillor Singh-Johal

6. DATES OF COMMISSION MEETINGS 2016/17

Members are asked to note that the meeting dates of the Commission for the
2016/17 municipal year currently are scheduled as:-

Tuesday 14 June 2016
Tuesday 9 August 2016



10.

11.

12.

Tuesday 20 September 2016
Tuesday 15 November 2016
Tuesday 10 January 2017
Tuesday 7 March 2017

PETITIONS

The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any petitions submitted in
accordance with the Council’s procedures.

QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF
CASE

The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any questions,
representations and statements of case submitted in accordance with the
Council’s procedures.

COMMITTEE PROCESSES - PRESENTATION

The Democratic Support Officer will present a short overview of some of the
procedural aspects of how the Commission works. The Commission is
recommended to note the information and comment as appropriate.

HERITAGE, CULTURE, LEISURE AND SPORT
PORTFOLIO OVERVIEW

The Director of Tourism, Culture and Investment and the Director of
Neighbourhood and Environmental Services will provide an overview of the
Heritage, Culture, Leisure and Sport portfolio. The Commission is
recommended to note the overview and use the information to inform the
Commission’s work for the coming municipal year.

SPORTS CENTRES AND SPORTS PARTICIPATION
UPDATE

The Head of Sports will make a presentation on sports facilities and sports
participation in the city. The Commission is invited to receive the presentation
and consider whether a Task Group should be established to review barriers to
sports participation. The findings of this review can then be used to inform the
development of a revised Sports Strategy for the Council.

KING RICHARD Il VISITOR CENTRE - UPDATE

Martin Traynor, Chairman of the King Richard Il Visitor Centre, and lain
Gordon, Director of the Centre, will provide an update on the success of the
Centre’s first year of operation and on future development of the Centre. The
Commission is recommended to note the updates and comment as
appropriate.



13.

14.

WORK PROGRAMME Appendix C

The current work programme for the Commission is attached. Members are

asked to consider this and make comments and/or amendments as considered
necessary.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS






O Appendix A

Coo

o

Leicester
City Council

Minutes of the Meeting of the
HERITAGE, CULTURE, LEISURE AND SPORT SCRUTINY COMMISSION

Held: THURSDAY, 31 MARCH 2016 at 5:30 pm

PRESENT:

Councillor Dr Barton (Chair)
Councillor Unsworth (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Bajaj Councillor Shelton
Councillor Govind Councillor Thalukdar
Councillor Halford

In Attendance:

Councillor Clair, Assistant City Mayor - Culture, Leisure and Sport
59. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.
60. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were made.
61. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
AGREED:
That the minutes of the meeting of the Heritage, Culture, Leisure
and Sport Scrutiny Commission held on 4 February 2016 be
confirmed as an accurate record.

62. PETITIONS

The Monitoring Officer reported that no petitions had been received.



63.

64.

QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF CASE

The Monitoring Officer reported that no questions, representations or
statements of case had been received.

UPDATE ON JEWRY WALL MUSEUM DEVELOPMENTS

The Head of Arts and Museums gave a presentation updating the Commission
on the development of the Jewry Wall Museum. A copy of this presentation is
attached at the end of these minutes for information.

The following points were made during discussion on this item:

The museum building was one of the few modernist buildings still being
used for a purpose similar to its original intended use;

The bathhouse remains and wall were an English Heritage Guardianship
Monument, recognising their national importance;

There had been no major refurbishment of the museum since the 1980s;

It was hoped that the original terrazzo flooring could be reinstated to a
usable condition;

The style of the proposed walkway from St Nicholas Circle to the Vaughn
College podium would reflect the style of Jubilee Square, opposite it. The
possibility of inserting glass in to the walkway and/or at its sides could be
considered;

The integrity of the 1960s interior of the building would be maintained;

It was hoped that a range of designs and costings for the improvement
works would be available by September 2016;

External funding would be sought for some of the proposed works. This
included a bid for Heritage Lottery Funding that had been developed with
the Friends of Jewry Wall Museum to enable interpretation to be improved;

The first phase of the work was likely to include the proposed walkway from
St Nicholas Circle to the Vaughn College podium, designs for the feature
staircase and external improvements;

The second phase of the work would include work to the ground floor of the
building, the reception area and the first floor;

The “short wing” would be used to store collections while the work of the
first two phases was carried out. A decision on the future use of that wing
therefore would be taken at a later date;



Work would be undertaken to improve the external staircase and prevent
its misuse. One suggestion was that the corner of the building should be
extended on to the staircase, but other alternatives also would be
considered;

The architect of the original building (Trevor Dannatt) would probably be
involved in this project through his role as Chairman of the Twentieth
Century Society, but he would not be retained by the Council;

The success of local campaigners in saving the site of the museum from
redevelopment as part of the Great Central Railway should be
commemorated,;

The part of the building resting on “stilts” was light and airy, so could be
developed as an area for use by young people. This also would help get
schools involved in the museum. A further advantage was that the existing
toilet facilities in that part of the building were suitable for this, rather than
any other use;

It was hoped that the redeveloped museum would be open for longer hours
than previously;

Promotion of the museum should be done on a wider basis than just
promoting it to local schools. For example, hotels near the museum could
be useful in encouraging people to visit the area, which contained a variety
of visitor attractions;

An exhibition could be established at the entrance to the museum showing
the uses to which the building had been put at various times. For example,
it had been used by the Film Society and the Archaeological Society, as
well as for various lectures and exhibitions;

Film of the original excavation of the Jewry Wall site could be shown on a
loop at the museum, (for example, at the entrance);

The effects of the weather on the Roman wall were not formally monitored,
but a conservation team kept it under observation and English Heritage
periodically cleaned weeds off it. The wall appeared to be robust at
present; and

Augmented reality would be used in the museum to enhance visitors’
understanding of what they were seeing. For example, photographs could
be placed by windows to enable comparisons to be made of past and
present views. Use also could be made of virtual reality, such as creating
holograms of people talking to visitors.

Councillor Bajaj left the meeting at 6.05 pm, during consideration of the above
comments.



65.

AGREED:

1) That the plans for the development of the Jewry Wall Museum be
welcomed and endorsed; and

2) That the Head of Arts and Museums be asked to:

a) Discuss with the architects for this project whether glass can
be inserted in to the proposed walkway from St Nicholas
Circle to the Vaughn College podium and/or up its sides;

b) Investigate whether film of the original excavation of the
Jewry Wall site is available and can be shown as part of the
exhibits at the redeveloped museum; and

c) Take account of the comments recorded above in
consideration of proposals for the development of the Jewry
Wall Museum.

UPDATE ON THE TASK GROUP REVIEW "CAPTURING THE ECONOMIC
PERFORMANCE OF LEICESTER'S HERITAGE AND CULTURE"

The Chair gave a verbal update on the current Task Group review of the
potential economic benefits of the city’s heritage and culture, as follows:

Two meetings of the Task Group had been held to date;

Various people had provided evidence to the Task Group, including Peter
Chandler (Leicester City Council’'s Development Manager Creative
Workspace, based at the LCB Depot), Kevan Grantham (Leicester City
Council’s Arts Manager), Barbara Matthews (Pro Vice-Chancellor and
Dean of Art, Design and Humanities, De Montfort University), Danny Myers
(Commercial Director of The Mighty Creatives charity), and Geoff Rowe
(Director of the Leicester Comedy Festival);

Although the review was focussing on the economic impacts of the city’s
heritage and culture, it was becoming evident that the social impacts were
equally important. The possibility of undertaking a formal review of these
later in the year therefore was being considered,;

Evidence received showed that there had been a 17% increase in
employment in creative industries across Leicester and Leicestershire in
recent years. This was the result of work over a number of years that had
been supplemented by events such as the reinterment of King Richard lll,
Leicester City Football Club’s current success, events staged in the city
during the 2015 Rugby World Cup, and events staged as part of the
London 2012 Olympic programme;

Jobs and investment had been attracted in to the city, (for example, from
companies such as IBM), as a result of work done and in progress;



66.

e Questions sometimes were raised by members of the public about
expenditure on heritage projects when other services were financially
constrained. The review had provided good evidence of benefits to the city
and the way in which investment in heritage and culture was significant to
the local economy. This was particularly important at a time when other
cities were reducing expenditure on arts and cultural services and would be
emphasised in the findings of the review;

e |t was anticipated that one further meeting of the Task Group would be
held, probably in late April 2016. All Members interested in the review
were welcome to attend and contribute; and

e Draft recommendations from the review currently included the establishing
of clearer methodologies for considering how economic data could be
gathered, that the social impacts of the city’s heritage and culture be
investigated and that greater publicity be given to what was being achieved
through investment in the city’s heritage and culture.

The Scrutiny Policy Officer confirmed that those interviewed as part of this
review had welcomed the work being done and felt that it would provide very
useful data. In addition, an indication had been received that De Montfort
University could be interested in working with the Council on similar research in
the future.

The Chair suggested that, when the review was complete, a briefing on its
findings could be held for members of this Commission. The Commission
noted that, following this, the report would be passed direct to the Executive as,
due to there being no further meetings of the Overview Select Committee
scheduled in the current municipal year, that Committee had agreed that it did
not need to consider the final report before the Executive considered it, (minute
99, “Scrutiny Commissions’ Work Programmes”, Overview Select Committee
meeting of 24 March 2016 referred).

WORK PROGRAMME

The Commission received and considered its current work programme.

At the invitation of the Chair, Councillor Clair (Assistant City Mayor — Culture,

Leisure and Sport) explained that preparation for the sports centres review was

underway. For example:

e Consultation and condition surveys had been undertaken. Although the
results generally were good, areas requiring investment had been
identified;

e Some “mystery shopping” had been undertaken;

e Consideration had been given to how summer sports were provided and a
similar exercise would be undertaken for winter sports;



67.

68.

e This work would be done in the context of the draft “Active Nation” strategy
recently published by the government and the existing Active Leicester
strategy;

e The Council was in the process of engaging a special adviser, to bring a
new perspective to sports services;

e A Sports Strategy was being prepared, which it was anticipated would be
available at the end of October 2016;

e The city’s outdoor gym equipment had high levels of use, which presented
opportunities to include these in the sports centres review, particularly as it
was recognised that some people could not afford to pay to use sports or
leisure centres; and

e In view of the above, the focus of the Sports Centres review would become
clear in late 2016 or early 2017, but in the meantime some funding had
been allocated to upgrade the décor in some sports centres and to improve
some areas, such as reception desks and showers.

AGREED:
1) That the 2015/16 work programme be received and noted; and

2) That the Assistant City Mayor — Culture, Leisure and Sport be
asked to keep the Commission updated on progress with the
Sports Centres review.

VOTES OF THANKS

Clir Clair (Assistant City Mayor - Culture, Leisure and Sport) thanked the Chair,
Vice-Chair, members of the Commission and officers for the way in which they
had conducted meetings of the Commission during the previous municipal
year.

In reply, the Chair thanked all involved for their work with the Commission,
including those who had provided evidence on various topics, thus enabling the
Commission to undertake its scrutiny function more effectively.

CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting closed at 7.12 pm



Minute Item 64

04/04/16

Introduction

Current interest in Jewry Wall Museum and its future, arising from e.g.:

+ Acquisition of Vaughan College from University of Leicester

+ Connecting Leicester improvements - redevelopment of the Jubilee Square
+ Redevelopment of Friars Miil and Waterside

+ Jewry Wall Museum’s 50th Anniversary

+ Effect of discovery and reinterment of King Richard Il

+ New understanding of the value of Leicester’s heritage




Background

+ Acclaimed modernist building by Trevor Dannatt

* Vaughan College opened 1962, operated by the University of Leicester
* lewry Wall Museum opened 1966, operated by Leicester City Council
* LUnigue bathhouse remains and wall

* Qutstanding roman and early Leicester collections

* Finds from the major excavations e.g. High Crass excavation

* Thriving archaeological community in Leicester and Leicestershire

* Active friends group- Friends of Jewry Wall Museum

Issues

* Range of options for using whole building

* Museum and surroundings now “tired” and dated

* Scope to increase visitor numbers from 20-25,000 pa to ¢ 75,000 pa
* Create visitor attraction with regional and national appeal

04/04/16



Work done so far

September 2015 acquisition of Vaughan College completed

Condition surveys carried out

July 2015 - January 2016 review of best use of whaole building and site
Consideration of access, presentation, visitor experience, operations, and
sustainahility of museum.

New walkway from St Nicholas
Circle to Vaughan College podium

= Archaeological investigations
carried out before work can start

¢ Scheduled Monument Consent
applied for

04/04/16



New walkway

New museum access

* From Vaughan College entrance

= Lift and staircase to display areas

* Lift and staircase being designed now

= Design for first floor to be finalised as part of overall museum design
* Restore integrity of 1960s interior

* Retain room configuration as far as possible

10

04/04/16



Redisplay and re-configure museum

* Design schermne to be commissioned
* Costed options will enable plans to be finalised for both floors
+ Conservation work to start on major items e.g. peacock pavement

11

04/04/16



Improve external site

* Restore archaeological layout

* Improve signage

+ Imprave interpretation

¢ Clean concrete

¢ Repaint fascias and windows

* Restore cobbled path between Jewry Wall and St Nicholas Church

Timescales

*  Walkway will be complete in 2017
* Other site improvements complete during 2016
* Museum plans finalised by December 2016

12

04/04/16



Potential budget

* First phase expected to cost ¢. £1.5 million {subject to formal decision)
» Costings for the next phase by December 2016

* Total budget could be over £5 million — but costs not yet estzhlished

= External funding bid will be considered

JENRY Wi mEaE
I:EI.ElIlTlllils.l“IsEEl'l! Pt ?
L d

n
4t LRTRY MART. a4 30w T :EE,,,

13

04/04/16



14



Appendix B

SCRUTINY COMMITTEES: TERMS OF REFERENCE

INTRODUCTION

Scrutiny Committees hold the executive and partners to account by reviewing and
scrutinising policy and practices. Scrutiny Committees will have regard to the
Political Conventions and the Scrutiny Operating Protocols and Handbook in fulfilling
their work.

The Overview Select Committee and each Scrutiny Commission will perform the role
as set out in Article 8 of the Constitution in relation to the functions set out in its
Terms of Reference.

Scrutiny Committees may:-

i. review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the City
Mayor, Executive, Committees and Council officers both in relation to
individual decisions and over time.

ii. develop policy, generate ideas, review and scrutinise the performance of the
Council in relation to its policy objectives, performance targets and/or
particular service areas.

iii. question the City Mayor, members of the Executive, committees and
Directors about their decisions and performance, whether generally in
comparison with service plans and targets over a period of time, or in relation
to particular decisions, initiatives or projects.

iv. make recommendations to the City Mayor, Executive, committees and the
Council arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process.

V. review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the Scrutiny
Committee and local people about their activities and performance; and

Vi. question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent).

. Annual report: The Overview Select Committee will report annually to Full
Council on its work and make recommendations for future work programmes
and amended working methods if appropriate. Scrutiny Commissions /
committees will report from time to time as appropriate to Council.

The Scrutiny Committees which have currently been established by the Council in
accordance with Article 8 of the Constitution are:

e Overview Select Committee (OSC)
e Adult Social Care Scrutiny Commission
e Children, Young People and Schools Scrutiny Commission

15



Economic Development, Transport and Tourism Scrutiny Commission
Health and Wellbeing Scrutiny Commission

Heritage, Culture, Leisure and Sport Scrutiny Commission

Housing Scrutiny Commission

Neighbourhood Services and Community Involvement Scrutiny
Commission

SCRUTINY COMMISSIONS

Scrutiny Commissions will:

Be aligned with the appropriate Executive portfolio.

Normally undertake overview of Executive work, reviewing items for Executive
decision where it chooses.

Engage in policy development within its remit.

Normally be attended by the relevant Executive Member, who will be a
standing invitee.

Have their own work programme and will make recommendations to the
Executive where appropriate.

Consider requests by the Executive to carry forward items of work and report
to the Executive as appropriate.

Report on their work to Council from time to time as required.

Be classed as specific Scrutiny Committees in terms of legislation but will
refer cross cutting work to the OSC.

Consider the training requirements of Members who undertake Scrutiny and
seek to secure such training as appropriate.

16


http://citymayor.leicester.gov.uk/welcome/my-executive-team/

LT

Heritage, Culture, Leisure and Sport Scrutiny Commission

Work Programme 2016-17

Meeting date

Meeting items

Actions Arising

Progress

RN

Committee Processes

2. Portfolio Overview
th
147 June 2016 3. Sport centres and sport participation
update
4. King Richard Il visitor centre update
9th August 2016
20th September
2016
15t November
2016
10t January 2017

7th March 2017

D Xipuaddy



8T

Heritage, Culture, Leisure and Sport Scrutiny Commission

Work Programme 2016-17

FORWARD PLAN / SUGGESTED ITEMS

Topic Detail Proposed Date
Sports participation in the city and sport Item in the context of the anticipated sport strategy. 14t June
facilities
Saffron Hill Cemetery Extension Progress and costs
Review into economic performance of heritage | Review findings to be presented th
oth August

and culture
King Richard Il Visitor Centre Visitor numbers and overall direction to include details

of events to mark the anniversary of the re-interment of 14t June

King Richard Il

Corn Exchange / Market Square development

Link with Alice Hawkins statue

Abbey Pumping Station Developments

Project update including artefacts and exhibits

Story of Leicester

Scrutiny of website re-launch

Development of a flag strategy

Flags in the City

Great Central Railway

Update on projects

Football Investment strategy

Update on strategy

The Story of Parks

Centenary Walk project and Lutyens Gates in Victoria
Park

Leicester City Football Club legacy

Future provision required and impact

Cultural education in schools

Numbers of pupils taking up the arts

Social impact of the arts, heritage and culture

Role of heritage and culture on education and health
and well-being

Return on investment in HCL events and
buildings

Costings and returns

Heritage conservation

Heritage action plan




	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	Minutes
	64 UPDATE ON JEWRY WALL MUSEUM DEVELOPMENTS

	4 TERMS OF REFERENCE
	13 WORK PROGRAMME

